
 

 

 

Integrity                  Respect                     Teamwork                Pride                 Innovation                 Diversity 

 

 

AGENDA 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 21, 2016 

222 GRAND VALLEY WAY, PARACHUTE, CO 

6:30 P.M. 

The Town of Parachute will make reasonable accommodations for access to Town services, programs, and activities and will make 

special communication arrangements for persons with disabilities. Please call (970) 285-7630, x-104 for assistance. 

   

 

(A) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 

 

(B) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 

(C) APPROVE AGENDA 
 

 

(D) CONSENT AGENDA: 

 (1) MINUTES FROM THE JUNE 23, 2016, REGULAR MEETING 

(2) EXPENDITURES PAID FROM JUNE 9, 2016, TO JULY 13, 2016 
 

 

(E) COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS REGARDING ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
The Board of Trustees welcomes you and thanks you for your time and concerns. 

If you wish to address the Board of Trustees, this is the time set on the agenda for you to do so. When you are recognized, please step 

to the podium, state your name and address then address the Board. Your comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. The Board 

may not respond to your comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement and provide 

direction to the appropriate member of Town Staff for follow-up. Thank you. 

 

PLEASE SILENCE ALL CELL PHONES, PAGERS, AND HAND HELD DEVICES. THANK YOU. 

PLEASE NOTE: THIS MEETING IS BEING AUDIO AND VIDEO RECORDED.  
  

 

(F) DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS: 

(1) Mayor and Board of Trustees ......................................................................................... Mayor and Trustees 

(2) Town Manager Monthly Update ................................................................ Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 

(3) Community Development Report .............................................................. Stuart McArthur, Town Manager 

(4) Public Works Department Monthly Update ............................................. Mark King, Public Works Director 

(5) Police Department Monthly Update ................................................................ Cary Parmenter, Police Chief 

 

 

(G)  PRESENTATION OF AND BOARD CONSIDERATION OF ACCEPTING THE TOWN OF 

PARACHUTE’S 2015 FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT. 

 

  PRESENTER: STEVEN PLUTT, DAZZIO & PLUTT, LLC 

 

 

(G)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH THE 

GARFIELD COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 16 REGARDING THE AFTER CONSTRUCTION REPAIR 

OF CARDINAL WAY AT THE GRAND VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL AND APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN. 

 

  STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 
     

 

(H) PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES TO CONSIDER A DEVELOPMENT 

2016-07-21 Page 1 of 147



 

 

 

Integrity                  Respect                     Teamwork                Pride                 Innovation                 Diversity 

 

REVIEW APPLICATION FROM RACHEL BALERIO FOR A SPECIAL USE REVIEW TO SEEK 

AUTHORIZATION FROM THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE TO ESTABLISH A LICENSED HOME 

DAYCARE FACILITY IN A RESIDENTIALLY ZONED AREA. 

 

  APPLICANT/OWNER:   Rachel Balerio  

       003 Aspen Ct  

       Parachute, CO  81635 

  

  PROJECT NAME:  PUBLIC HEARING FOR A SPECIAL REVIEW USE TO SEEK 

AUTHORIZATION FROM THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE TO 

ESTABLISH A LICENSED HOME DAYCARE FACILITY IN 

A RESIDENTIALLY ZONED AREA. 

   

  PROJECT LOCATION: 003 ASPEN CT 

      PARACHUTE, CO  81635 

  

  LEGAL DESCRIPTION(S): SECTION:  12 

TOWNSHIP:  7 

RANGE:  96  

LOT:  3 

COUNTY OF GARFIELD 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 

  STAFF:  DAVIS FARRAR, TOWN PLANNER 

    STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 

 

 

(Hh)  BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-16  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, 

APPROVING A SPECIAL REVIEW USE PERMIT FOR RACHEL BALERIO TO OPERATE A HOME 

DAY CARE CENTER 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
 

 

(I)  PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES TO CONSIDER A DEVELOPMENT 

REVIEW APPLICATION FROM THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO 

SEEK AUTHORIZATION TO ALLOW ALL ZONING TEMPORARY USES/SPECIAL EVENTS 

PERMITS. 

 

  APPLICANT/OWNER:   TOWN OF PARACHUTE  

       222 GRAND VALLEY WAY  

       PARACHUTE, CO  81635 

  

  PROJECT NAME:  PUBLIC HEARING FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO SEEK 

AUTHORIZATION FROM THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE TO 

ALLOW ALL ZONING TEMPORARY USES/SPECIAL 

EVENTS PERMITS. 

   

  PROJECT LOCATION: N/A 

      

  LEGAL DESCRIPTION(S): N/A 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
 

  

(Ii ) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF EMERGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 704-2016 

 

 AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, AMENDING 

SECTION 15.03.215 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING THE SCHEDULE OF 

2016-07-21 Page 2 of 147



 

 

 

Integrity                  Respect                     Teamwork                Pride                 Innovation                 Diversity 

 

USES PERMITTED IN ZONE DISTRICTS RELATED TO TEMPORARY USES AND CHAPTERS 15.05 

AND 15.06 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING REVIEW PROCESS FOR 

TEMPORARY USES 

 

STAFF:  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 

     STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
 

 

(J) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 705-2016 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, PUBLISHING THE PARACHUTE 

MUNICPAL CODE THROUGH CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY AND ADOPTING TECHNICAL 

CORRECTIONS TO THE CODE. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 

   JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY  
  

 

 (K) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 699-2016 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 12.03 

TO THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE AUTHORIZING AND REGULATING THE USE OF OFF-

HIGHWAY VEHICLES WITHIN THE TOWN.  

   

  STAFF: JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 

    STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER  
 

 

 (L) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2016-15   

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

SETTING AN ELECTION DATE ON THE INITIATED ORDINANCE TO PROHIBIT THE OPERATION 

OF MARIJUANA CULTIVATION FACILITIES, MARIJUANA PRODUCT MANUFACTURING 

FACILITIES, MARIJUANA TESTING FACILITIES, AND RETAIL MARIJUANA STORES AND TO 

SET A BALLOT TITLE. 

 

STAFF:  JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY   

  STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 

 

 

(M)   BOARD CONSIDERATION OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE AND MARK 

CHAIN CONSULTING, LLC TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR PLANNING AND 

APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN. 

 

STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 

    JEFFREY CONKLIN, TOWN ATTORNEY 

 

 

(N) BOARD CONSIDERATION OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR MOSQUITO 

CONTROL BETWEEN THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE AND THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF GARFIELD COUNTY AND APPROVE MAYOR TO SIGN. 

 

 STAFF: STUART McARTHUR, TOWN MANAGER 

    MARK KING, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR  
 

 

(O) OTHER MATTERS  

 

(1) HISTORICAL SOCIETY THANK YOU   
 

 

2016-07-21 Page 3 of 147



 

 

 

Integrity                  Respect                     Teamwork                Pride                 Innovation                 Diversity 

 

(P) EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF NECESSARY) 

 

 

(Q) MOTION TO ADJOURN 

 
 

 

2016-07-21 Page 4 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 5 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 6 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 7 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 8 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 9 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 10 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 11 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 12 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 13 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 14 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 15 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 16 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 17 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 18 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 19 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 20 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 21 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 22 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 23 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 24 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 25 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 26 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 27 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 28 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 29 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 30 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 31 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 32 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 33 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 34 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 35 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 36 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 37 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 38 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 39 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 40 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 41 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 42 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 43 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 44 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 45 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 46 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 47 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 48 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 49 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 50 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 51 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 52 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 53 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 54 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 55 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 56 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 57 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 58 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 59 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 60 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 61 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 62 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 63 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 64 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 65 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 66 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 67 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 68 of 147



 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-16 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO, APPROVING A SPECIAL REVIEW USE PERMIT FOR RACHEL 
BALERIO TO OPERATE A HOME DAY CARE CENTER 

 
WHEREAS, Brian and Rachel Balerio (the “Applicant”) wish to operate a home day care 

center on property located at 3 Aspen Court, Parachute, CO 81635, identified as Garfield County 
Parcel No. 2409-123-06-003 (the “Property”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Property is zoned Medium Density Residential (MDR);  

 
WHEREAS, MDR zoning allows for a home day care center as a special review use and, 

therefore, Applicant has applied for a special review use permit for such use on the Property, 
known as the Balerio Day Care Center (the “Application”);  

 
WHEREAS, Section 15.05 of the Parachute Municipal Code (the “Code”) allows for 

special review use to be approved as follows:   
 

Uses designated as special review uses are contingent uses which may or 
may not be appropriate in a particular location depending on the nature of 
the proposed use, its relationship to surrounding land uses and its impact on 
traffic capacities, potential environmental effects, compatibility with the 
neighborhood, and conformance with the Parachute Plan.  It is the intent of 
these Regulations to provide a review of special review uses so that the 
community is assured that any proposed special review uses are suitable for 
the proposed location and are compatible with the surrounding land uses. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the Town of Parachute reviewed the 

Application and has recommended approval, subject to the conditions set forth in Exhibit A which 
is incorporated herein (the “Conditions”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has reviewed the Applicant’s Application for a Special 

Review Use Permit to allow for a home day care center to be located on the Property and finds 
that it conforms with the terms and conditions of Chapter 15.05 of the Code subject to the subject 
to Conditions, which are incorporated herein, and, therefore, wishes to approve such permit. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 

 
 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.   
 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Applicant’s Application for a special review 

2016-07-21 Page 69 of 147



use permit for a home day care center on the Property subject to the Conditions set forth in Exhibit 
A and authorizes the Town Manager to negotiate and approve a cash payment in lieu of land 
dedication pursuant to Section 15.01.111 of the Code.  

 
Section 3. This Resolution may be recorded in the public records of Garfield County, 

Colorado. 
 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by a vote of  __  to      of 
the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado at a regular meeting held at Town Hall 
in the Town of Parachute, Colorado, on the 21st day of July, 2016 and approved by the Mayor on 
the 21st day of July, 2016. 
    

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

        
 

By _____________________________ 
Roy B. McClung, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Town Clerk  

 
  

2016-07-21 Page 70 of 147



EXHIBIT A - CONDITIONS 
 

 
1. If recommended by the Parachute Police Department and/or Public Works Department, the 

applicant shall install a sign in front of the property stating “15 Minute Parking Only”.  
 

2. The facility shall comply with all applicable fire codes.  
 

3. The Record of Decision by the Parachute Board of Trustees for the Balerio Daycare Center 
Special Review Use shall be recorded in the real estate records of the Garfield County 
Clerk and Recorder.  
 

4. All representations made in the Applicant’s written materials or verbally as reflected in the 
minutes of the public meetings or hearings where the Application was presented to or 
considered by the Commission and/or Board of Trustees are considered part of the 
Application and binding on the Applicant.  
 

5. Applicant shall reimburse the Town for any and all fees, including consulting costs, 
incurred in the review of the Application.  

 

2016-07-21 Page 71 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 72 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 73 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 74 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 75 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 76 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 77 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 78 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 79 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 80 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 81 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 82 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 83 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 84 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 85 of 147



 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
ORDINANCE NO. 704-2016 

 
 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, 
AMENDING SECTION 15.03.215 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE 
CONCERNING THE SCHEDULE OF USES PERMITTED IN ZONE DISTRICTS 
RELATED TO TEMPORARY USES AND CHAPTERS 15.05 AND 15.06 OF THE 
PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING REVIEW PROCESS FOR 
TEMPORARY USES. 
 

WHEREAS, Title 15 of the Parachute Municipal Code (the “Code”) contains the Town of 
Parachute’s land use regulations;  

 
WHEREAS, Section 15.03.215 of the Code contains the Schedule of Uses in Zone Districts 

(“Schedule of Uses”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute (the “Board”) wishes to 

amend the Schedule of Uses to set forth new temporary uses and review requirements for 
temporary uses in the Town’s zone districts;  

 
WHEREAS, the Board finds that allowing for delegated administrative review of temporary 

uses pursuant to Section 15.05.212 of the Code, and additional criteria adopted by this ordinance, 
will serve to more timely accommodate such temporary uses, while still ensuring the life, health, 
and safety of the Town and its residents;  

 
WHEREAS, the Board initiated an application for text amendment to Title 15 pursuant to 

Section 15.01.110 and 15.05.202 of the Code (the “Text Amendment”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager determined the Text Amendment was complete pursuant to 

Section 15.05.203 of the Code;  
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the Text 

Amendment at a public meeting held on June 9, 2016 pursuant to Sections 15.05.205 and 
15.05.206 of the Code; 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing before the Board of Trustees scheduled and noticed for June 

16, 2016 was unable to be heard due to lack of a quorum;  
 

WHEREAS, the Board considered the Text Amendment at a public hearing on July 21, 
2016 pursuant to Section 15.05.208 of the Code and said hearing was properly noticed in 
accordance with Section 15.01.106 of the Code;  

 
WHEREAS, Section 1-12 of the Town Charter authorizes the Board of Trustees to enact an 

emergency ordinance that is immediately necessary for the preservation of public peace, health, or 
safety by the affirmative vote of every member of the Board of Trustees present or by affirmative 

2016-07-21 Page 86 of 147



votes equal to a quorum plus one (1), whichever is less;  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 15.01.110 and Chapter 15.05 of the Code, the Board finds 

and determines the proposed amendments to the Schedule of Uses and the designated 
administrative review procedure for temporary uses to be desirable and in the best interests of the 
Town and wishes to amend the Schedule of Uses adopt the review procedure in accordance with 
the Text Amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board further finds that it is necessary to declare an emergency for the 

preservation of public peace, health, and safety to amend the Schedule of Uses and adopt the 
designated administrative review procedure for temporary uses to ensure timely review of 
temporary uses and special events. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 

 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 

 
Section 2. Section 15.05.103 of the Parachute Municipal Code is hereby amended as 

follows, with additions shown in bold, underlined text and strike through language deleted: 
 
15.05.103 General procedures. 
 
*** 
 
D.  Delegated Administrative Review Approval of Boundary Line Adjustments. 

Boundary line adjustments, minor subdivisions, and other applications over which the Town 
Manager has discretion to review are approved by the Town Manager who will utilize the Town 
staff, consultants and review agencies as necessary to review and approve or deny boundary line 
adjustments. On a case-by-case basis, the Town Manager may refer the boundary line adjustment 
application to the Planning Commission and/or, as applicable, the Board of Trustees for a 
decision. 

 
Section 3. Section 15.05.212 of the Parachute Municipal Code is hereby amended as 

follows, with additions shown in bold, underlined text and strike through language deleted: 
 
15.05.212 Delegated administrative review decision.  
 
A. Review Procedures. The Town Manager, or his/her designee, will review complete 

applications for boundary line adjustments, minor subdivisions, and other applications over which 
the Town Manager has discretion to review and render a decision to approve, approve with 
conditions, or deny the application within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of a complete 

2016-07-21 Page 87 of 147



application and satisfaction of notice requirements under PMC 15.01.106 and 15.05.213. 
Alternatively, the Town Manager may, on a case-by-case basis, refer the application to the 
Planning Commission and/or, as applicable, the Board of Trustees for review and decision under 
the provisions of PMC 15.05.201. 

 
B. Review Criteria. The Town Manager, or his/her designee, shall consider all the 

evidence presented by the applicant and other interested parties, comments of review agencies, 
recommendations of the Town Engineer, staff and consultants and comments from the public. At a 
minimum, the Town Manager, or his/her designee, shall also consider the following criteria: 

 
1. Conformance of the proposal with the Town of Parachute Municipal Code; 

 
2. The compatibility of the proposal with the character of the surrounding area 

including, but not limited to, the architectural character of the neighborhood; 
 

3. The desirability for the proposed use in the specific area of the Town; 
 

4. The potential for adverse environmental effects that might result from the 
proposed use; 

 
5. Compatibility of the proposed use and the site plan with the Parachute Plan; 

 
6. Conformance of any minor subdivision and/or boundary line adjustment with 

the requirements of the Town of Parachute public works improvements manual; 
and 

 
7. Additional criteria that may apply to a specific application. Verification that 

the minor subdivision and/or boundary line adjustment will not result in a 
nonconforming lot or any other deviation from Town zoning and land use 
requirements. 

 
8. Verification that the minor subdivision will conform to the requirements of 

Chapter 15.04 PMC. 
 
C. Additional Review Criteria for Minor Subdivision and Boundary Line Adjustment 

Applications.  In addition to the review criteria of Section 15.05.212.B PMC, the Town 
Manager, or his designee, shall consider the following criteria for review of minor subdivision 
and boundary line adjustment applications:   

 
1. Verification that the minor subdivision and/or boundary line adjustment 

will not result in a nonconforming lot or any other deviation from Town 
zoning and land use requirements. 

2016-07-21 Page 88 of 147



 
2. Verification that the minor subdivision will conform to the requirements of 

Chapter 15.04 PMC. 
 

D. Additional Review Criteria for Temporary Use Applications.  In addition to the 
review criteria of Section 15.05.212.B PMC, the Town Manager, or his designee, shall 
consider the following criteria for review of temporary use applications minor subdivision 
and boundary line adjustment applications 
 

1. Ability to protect public  health and safety;  
 

2. Proper vehicle and pedestrian ingress/egress and circulation; 
 

3. Sufficient refuse collection and disposal; 
 

4. Provision for utilities and toilet facilities; 
 

5. Assurances that the site is capable of being restored to a satisfactory 
condition; and 

 
6. Obtaining any other necessary permits. 

 
 

Section 4. Chapter 15.06 of the Parachute Municipal Code is hereby amended by the 
addition of a new Section 15.06.215 as follows: 
 

15.06.215. Temporary Uses.  
 
A.  Applications for temporary uses shall be submitted in accordance with any current 

application form and include the submittal requirements contained at Section 15.06.102, except as 
may be waived by the Town Manager, or his/her designee, on a case-by-case basis. 

 
B. Town Manager, or his/her designee, may approve, approve with conditions, or deny 

any application.  Town Manager may also impose conditions on any approval to mitigate any 
anticipated adverse impacts 

 
C. Temporary uses shall only be permitted for the time period specified in the 

approval.  Failure to terminate an approved temporary use by the specified time shall constitute a 
violation of this Chapter.   

 
D. Two (2) renewals of an approved temporary use may be granted. 
 

2016-07-21 Page 89 of 147



 
Section 5. The Schedule of Uses contained in Section 15.03.215 of the Code shall be 

amended to read as set forth in Exhibit A enclosed herewith and incorporated herein by this 
reference.   
 
 INTRODUCED, READ, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 
TITLE ONLY by a vote of __   to  _    of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, 
Colorado at a regular meeting held at Town Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado, on the 16th 
day of June, 2016 and approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN 
OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Roy McClung, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Town Clerk 
  

2016-07-21 Page 90 of 147



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public notice is hereby given that an Ordinance entitled: 

 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, 
AMENDING SECTION 15.03.215 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE 
CONCERNING THE SCHEDULE OF USES PERMITTED IN ZONE DISTRICTS 
RELATED TO TEMPORARY USES AND CHAPTERS 15.05 AND 15.06 OF THE 
PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING REVIEW PROCESS FOR 
TEMPORARY USES. 
 
was introduced before the Board of Trustees on July 21, 2016; that a copy of said Ordinance is 
posted at Town Hall; and that the Ordinance was approved at a regular meeting of the Board of 
Trustees held on July 21, 2016, and approved by the Mayor on ____________________, 2016.   
 
Copies of the adopted ordinance are available for inspection at the Town Hall, Parachute, Colorado 
and available on the internet at http://www.parachutecolorado.com.   
 

Dated this _____ day of July, 2016. 
 
 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
 
__________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

 

2016-07-21 Page 91 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 92 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 93 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 94 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 95 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 96 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 97 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 98 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 99 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 100 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 101 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 102 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 103 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 104 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 105 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 106 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 107 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 108 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 109 of 147



 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
ORDINANCE NO. 699-2016 

 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, ADDING A NEW 
CHAPTER 12.03 TO THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE AUTHORIZING AND 
REGULATING THE USE OF OFF-HIGHWAY VEHICLES WITHIN THE TOWN. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule municipality 
organized pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and under the Parachute Home 
Rule Charter;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 33, Article 14.5, C.R.S., the Town is authorized to permit 
“the operation of off-highway vehicles on city streets or county roads” by ordinance or 
resolution, and to enact regulations for the operation of the same, if consistent with the 
applicable Colorado statutes and regulations;  
 

WHEREAS, Section 33-14.5-110, C.R.S., was adopted by Senate Bill 2016-008, signed 
into law on March 16, 2016, and authorizes the Town to require off-highway vehicle operators to 
be licensed and to carry liability insurance for use on local streets and county roads within the 
Town’s borders;  
 

WHEREAS, Section 33-14.5-110, C.R.S., further provides that the Town may exercise 
local control for the safe crossing of state highways upon written request to the regional office of 
the Colorado Department of Transportation;  

 
WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 30-15-401(1)(h) authorizes the Town to control and regulate the 

movement and parking of vehicles and motor vehicles on public property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Parachute Board of Trustees finds and believes that it is in the 
interest of the public welfare and safety to authorize the use of off-highway vehicles on all local 
streets and county roads within the Town.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 
 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full. 
 
Section 2. Pursuant to C.R.S. § 30-14.5-110, the Town of Parachute hereby exercises 

local control and regulation concerning the operation of off-highway vehicles on public lands, 
waters, and property under its jurisdiction and on streets and highways within its boundaries 

 
Section 3. The Town of Parachute hereby designates and permits off-highway 

vehicles to operate on all local streets and county roads within the borders of the Town, and 
amends the Parachute Municipal Code by the addition of a new Chapter 12.02 as follows: 

 

2016-07-21 Page 110 of 147



Town of Parachute, Colorado 
Ordinance No. 699-2016 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 

Chapter 12.03 
OFF-HIGHWAY VEHICLES 

 
12.03.110 Definitions.  

 
 Whenever the following words or phrases are used in this Section, they shall have 
the following meaning: 
 

“Off -highway vehicle” means any self-propelled vehicle which is designed to 
travel on wheels or tracks in contract with the ground, which is designed primarily 
for use off of the public highways, and which is generally and commonly used to 
transport persons for recreational purposes. “Off-highway vehicle” does not 
include:  

 
i. Vehicles designed and used primarily for travel on, over, or in the water; 

ii.  Snowmobiles; 
iii.  Privately owned military vehicles; 
iv. Golf carts; 
v. Vehicles designed and used to carry disabled persons; 

vi. Vehicles designed and used specifically for agricultural, logging, or 
mining purposes; or 

vii.  Vehicles registered pursuant to Article 3 of Title 42, C.R.S. 
 

12.03.111 Purpose; applicability.  
 

 Off-highway vehicles shall be allowed on local streets located within the Town of 
Parachute to access recreational trails located outside the Town of Parachute, subject to 
the restrictions provided herein. The provisions of the Model Traffic Code, as amended in 
the Parachute Municipal Code, concerning reckless driving, careless driving, eluding a 
police officer, accidents and accident reports, and impaired driving shall apply 
throughout the Town. 

 
12.03.112 Designated Routes. 

 
 Off-highway vehicles may be operated on local streets in order to access 
recreational trails located outside the Town of Parachute limits via County Roads 215 and 
300, consistent with the following: 

 
A. For all areas north of Interstate 70, off-highway vehicles must use the most 

direct route to Parachute Avenue or Parachute Park Boulevard, whichever is 
closest to the operator’s point of origin, to access County Road 215. 
 

2016-07-21 Page 111 of 147



Town of Parachute, Colorado 
Ordinance No. 699-2016 
Page 3 of 7 
 

B. For all areas south of Interstate 70, off-highway vehicles must use the most 
direct route to County Road 300.  
 

C. No operator of an off-highway vehicle may cross or traverse the combined 
Interstate 70 and US Highway 6, the frontage roads thereof, or use the 
Interstate 70/County Road 215 interchange. 

 
12.03.113 Restrictions. 

 
A. Any person operating an off-highway vehicle in the incorporated areas of 

the Town of Parachute shall comply with all rules and regulations applicable to such 
vehicles adopted by the State of Colorado and or the Federal Government, including, but 
not limited to, Article 14.5 of Title 33, C.R.S., and the following: 
 

1. Any person operating an off-highway vehicle on any local street or 
county road within the Town of Parachute must be at least 16 years of age and 
have in their possession a valid current driver’s license issued by the State of 
Colorado, or by any other state. 

 
2. All off -highway vehicles operating within the Town shall be 

registered with Colorado Parks and Wildlife through the Colorado Department of 
Motor Vehicles as provided in C.R.S. § 42-6-103. Such registration shall at all 
times be visible on or in the possession of the operator of the off-highway vehicle. 

  
3. When operated on any local street or county road within the Town, 

off-highway vehicles shall be considered to be “motor vehicles” as defined in the 
Colorado Motor Vehicle Financial Responsibility Law, Title 42, Article 7, C.R.S., 
and shall be required to maintain, and produce upon request by any law 
enforcement officer, liability insurance equal to at least the minimum amount 
required by law. 

 
4. Off-highway vehicles operated within the Town shall be equipped 

with: 
 

a. A muffler in constant operation and properly maintained; 
b. A spark arrestor in good working order which has been approved by 

the U.S. Forest Service as evidenced by a bona fide permanent 
marking of “qualified” or “approved” on the spark arrestor; 

c. A braking system that may be operated by had or foot, capable of 
producing deceleration of 14 feet per second on level ground at a 
speed of 20 miles per hour; and 

d. At least one lighted head lamp and one lighted tail lamp, each having 
the minimum candlepower prescribed by regulation of the Division of 
Parks and Wildlife while being operated between the hours of sunset 
and sunrise.  

e. At least one rear-view mirror. 

2016-07-21 Page 112 of 147



Town of Parachute, Colorado 
Ordinance No. 699-2016 
Page 4 of 7 
 

f. At least one functioning brake-light.  
 

5. Operators of off-highway vehicles within the Town shall use 
proper hand signals to warn other drivers of their intentions such as to turn or 
stop. 

 
B. It shall be unlawful to operate an off-highway vehicle within the Town in 

any of the following manners: 
 

1. In excess of 25 miles per hour or the posted speed limit, whichever 
is less; 

2. On any portion of any street except the far right portion of the 
street; 

3. To drive together in any pattern except single file; 
4. Without appropriate head and eye protection; 
5. Upon any state-highway under the jurisdiction of the Colorado 

Department of Transportation; 
6. Notwithstanding any other portion of this Section, off-highway 

vehicles may be driven in the left portion of the street when preparing for a left 
turn;  

7. To tow objects or people behind such vehicle; 
8. To carry more people than such vehicle is designed to carry; 
9. To operate such vehicle on sidewalks within the Town;  
10. And in a manner inconsistent with Section 12.03.112. 

 
12.03.114 Safety Requirements. 

 
A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Chapter, the requirements of 

Section 42-4-1501 through 42-4-1504 shall apply to the use of off-highway vehicles 
within the Town of Parachute.  

 
B. Any operator or passenger of an off-highway vehicle must at all times be 

equipped with the following: 
 

1. A functioning protective helmet of a type and design manufactured 
for use by operators of off-highway vehicles or motorcycles which 
conforms to the specifications of C.R.S. § 42-4-1502. 

2. Protective eye-wear. 
 

 
12.03.115       Special Events. 

 
For the purposes of a prearranged organized special event and upon a showing that safety 
will be reasonably maintained, the Town Manager may grant a special permit exempting 
the operation of an off-highway vehicle from any requirement of this Chapter 12.03. 

 

2016-07-21 Page 113 of 147



Town of Parachute, Colorado 
Ordinance No. 699-2016 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 
12.03.116              Enforcement. 

 
A. Penalties. It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision or 

fail to comply with any of the requirements of this Chapter. Any person who violates any 
of the provisions of this Chapter commits a Class B municipal offense. Any person who 
violates any other provision of this Chapter, not resulting in appreciable damage to the 
property of another or any injury or death to any person, commits a non-criminal 
municipal offense. Any violation of this Chapter which does result in appreciable damage 
to the property of another or an injury or death to any person shall be deemed a Class B 
municipal offense. The municipal judge is hereby authorized to promulgate a penalty 
assessment schedule for violations of this Chapter in accordance with Rule 210(b)(5) of 
the Colorado Municipal Court Rules of Procedure. 

 
B. Impoundment of Off-highway Vehicles. The Town of Parachute Police 

Department is hereby authorized to impound any off-highway vehicle which the 
Department has probable cause to believe is being operated within the Town in violation 
of the provisions of this Chapter. Unless otherwise determined by the Parachute 
Municipal Court or the Chief of Police, any vehicle so impounded shall remain 
impounded until such time as the operator of such impounded off-highway vehicle is 
found guilty of a violation under this Chapter, pleads guilty to a violation under this 
Chapter, or is found not guilty by the Parachute Municipal Court of violating a provision 
in this Chapter. In the event an off-highway vehicle is impounded pursuant to this 
Section, the owner of such vehicle shall pay an impoundment fee of one hundred dollars 
($100.00) and after five (5) days following impoundment of the vehicle, the owner shall 
also pay a storage fee of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per day for each day that said 
vehicle remains in the custody and control of the Parachute Police Department.  

 
 

Section 4. If any provision of this Ordinance is found to be unconstitutional or 
unlawful, such finding shall only invalidate that part of portion found to violate the law.  All 
other provisions shall be deemed severable and shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
 INTRODUCED, READ, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY 
TITLE ONLY by a vote of    to      of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado 
at a regular meeting held at Town Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado, on the 16th day of 
June, 2016 and approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of June, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2016-07-21 Page 114 of 147



Town of Parachute, Colorado 
Ordinance No. 699-2016 
Page 6 of 7 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
By: ____________________________________ 

Roy McClung, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Town Clerk 
  

2016-07-21 Page 115 of 147



Town of Parachute, Colorado 
Ordinance No. 699-2016 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public notice is hereby given that an Ordinance entitled: 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, ADDING A NEW 
CHAPTER, 12.03 TO THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE AUTHORIZING AND 
REGULATING THE USE OF OFF-HIGHWAY VEHICLES WITHIN THE TOWN. 
 
was introduced before the Board of Trustees on June 16, 2016; that a copy of said Ordinance is 
posted at Town Hall; and that the Ordinance was approved at a regular meeting of the Board of 
Trustees held on June 16, 2016, and approved by the Mayor on ____________________, 2016.   
 
Copies of the adopted ordinance are available for inspection at the Town Hall, Parachute, 
Colorado and available on the internet at http://www.parachutecolorado.com.   
 

Dated this _____ day of June, 2016. 
 
 

TOWN OF PARACHUTE 
 
__________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

 

2016-07-21 Page 116 of 147



 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-15 
 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, 
COLORADO SETTING AN ELECTION DATE ON THE INITIATED ORDINANCE TO 
PROHIBIT THE OPERATION OF MARIJUANA CULTIVATION FACILITIES, 
MARIJUANA PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITIES, MARIJUANA TESTING 
FACILITIES, AND RETAIL MARIJUANA STORES AND TO SET A BALLOT TITLE. 

 
WHEREAS, the provisions of Article VI of the Town Charter and Article V, Section 1(1) 

of the Colorado Constitution provide the electors of the Town of Parachute the power to initiate 
ordinances to the Board of Trustees for the Town;  

 
WHEREAS, in 2015, a Petitioners Committee was formed and the Committee submitted 

to the Town Clerk a Citizens’ Initiated Petition with the following title:   
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 
PROHIBITING THE OPERATION OF MARIJUANA CULTIVATION 
FACILITIES, MARIJUANA PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITIES, 
MARIJUANA TESTING FACILITIES, AND RETAIL MARIJUANA STORES; 
AND REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY ORDINANCE NO. 683 AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO, REPEALING 
SECTION 11.08.150 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE 
PROHIBITING CRIMINALIZING THE OPERATION OF RETAIL 
MARIJUANA FACILITIES AND ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 6.11 TO TITLE 
6 OF THE PARACHUTE MUNICIPAL CODE TO GOVERN LICENSING, AND 
OPERATION OF RETAIL MARIJUANA CULTIVATION FACILITIES, 
TESTING FACILITIES, PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITIES, AND 
STORES 
 
(the “Initiated Ordinance”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Initiated Ordinance was placed on the agenda for the Board of Trustees 

regular meeting on September 17, 2015, at which, the Board of Trustees voted to not adopt the 
Initiated Ordinance and for the Initiated Ordinance be placed on the ballot of the November 2016 
general election, as prescribed by paragraph (5)(F) of Section 16 of Article XVIII of the Colorado 
Constitution;  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees wishes to set the election date for the Initiated 

Ordinance and set the ballot title for the Initiated Ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees finds that the adoption of this Resolution is necessary 

to conduct an initiative election, as prescribed by Colorado law. 

2016-07-21 Page 117 of 147



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO THAT: 
 

 Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.   
 
 Section 2. Date of Election. 
 

The Board of Trustees hereby sets November 8, 2016 as the date of an election on the 
Initiated Ordinance  

 
Section 3. Ballot Title.  
 
The Board of Trustees here by sets the following ballot title for the Initiated Ordinance to 

be placed on the ballot for the November 8, 2016 election: 
 
 “Shall the Town of Parachute prohibit the licensing and operation of retail marijuana 
cultivation facilities, retail marijuana product manufacturing facilities, retail marijuana testing 
facilities, and retail marijuana stores?” 
 
 Yes _______ 
 
 No _______ 
 

Section 4. Direction to Town Staff. 
 
 Town Staff is hereby authorized and directed to take such actions as are necessary and 
proper to conduct an initiative election, including but not limited to, preparing official ballots in 
accordance with C.R.S. § 31-11-101, et seq, conducting this election as part of a coordinated 
general election, and all other necessary and prudent actions and/or obligations of the Town to 
conduct an election in accordance with Colorado law.    

 
INTRODUCED, PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by a vote of ___ to ___ of 

the Board of Trustees of the Town of Parachute, Colorado at a special meeting held at the Town 
Hall in the Town of Parachute, Colorado on the ___ day of ________________, 2016 and 
approved by the Mayor on the ____ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2016-07-21 Page 118 of 147



BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
TOWN OF PARACHUTE, COLORADO 

 
 

By _____________________________ 
Roy B. McClung, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Town Clerk  

2016-07-21 Page 119 of 147



 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF PARACHUTE 

AND MARK CHAIN CONSULTING, LLC 
TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR PLANNING 

 
DATE: JULY 22, 2016 
 
PARTIES: TOWN OF PARACHUTE, a Colorado municipal corporation, 222 Grand Valley 

Way, Parachute Colorado  81635 (Town). 
 

MARK CHAIN CONSULTING, LLC, a corporation, 811 Garfield Avenue,     
Carbondale, CO  81623 (Consultant). 

 
RECITALS:  
 
Town wishes to engage Consultant to provide planning services as needed and as further set forth 
in the Scope of Services (which services are hereinafter referred to as the “Services”). 
 
TERMS: 
 
 Section 1. Scope of Services. Consultant shall provide the Services as described in the 
attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein by reference.  Town shall not be obligated to use 
Consultant for any specific project or for any projects at all during the term of this Agreement.  
Consultant shall bill Town on a monthly basis for professional services actually completed and 
costs incurred at the time of billing rendered at the hourly rates designated in Exhibit A.    
Consultant’s schedule of fees may be updated from time to time upon approval of the Town Board 
of Trustees, in which case a revised Exhibit A shall be appended to this Agreement.  In its sole 
discretion, the Town may contract with other consultants to provide the same or similar services 
during the term of this Agreement.   
 
 Section 2. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the signing of 
this Agreement by the Town. Town shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time 
with 30 days written notice to Consultant by providing written notice to Consultant of termination.  
The Town’s only obligation in the event of termination shall be payment of fees and expenses 
incurred up to and including the effective date of termination. 
 
Consultant shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time with 30 days written notice 
to Town by providing written notice to Town of termination.   
  

Section 3. Assignment.  This Agreement shall not be assigned by Consultant without 
the written consent of the Town. 
 
 Section 4.   Notice.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given for all purposes if sent by certified 
mail or registered mail, postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the party to whom such notice is to 
be given at the address set forth on the first page of this Agreement, or at such other address as has 

2016-07-21 Page 120 of 147



been previously furnished in writing to the other party or parties.  Such notice shall be deemed 
given when deposited in the United States mail. 
 

Section 5. Exhibits.  All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are, by reference, 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 
 Section 6. Delays.  Any delays in or failure of performance by any party of his or its 
obligations under this Agreement shall be excused if such delays or failure are a result of acts of 
God, fires, floods, strikes, labor disputes, accidents, regulations or orders of civil or military 
authorities, shortages of labor or materials, or other causes, similar or dissimilar, which are beyond 
the control of such party. 
 
 Section 7. Additional Documents.  The parties agree to execute any additional 
documents or take any additional action that is necessary to carry out this Agreement. 
 
 Section 8. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement 
between the parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings.  This 
Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties.  If any other 
provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, no other provision shall be affected 
by such holding, and all of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force 
and effect. 
 
 Section 9. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence.  If any payment or any other 
condition, obligation, or duty is not timely made, tendered or performed by either party, then this 
Agreement, at the option of the party who is not in default, may be terminated by the non-
defaulting party, in which case, the non-defaulting party may recover such damages as may be 
proper.   
 
 Section 10. Waiver.  A waiver by any party to this Agreement of the breach of any term 
or provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent 
breach by either party. 
 
 Section 11. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Colorado. 
 
 Section 12. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be 
binding upon, the parties, their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns; 
provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to permit the assignment of 
this Agreement except as otherwise expressly authorized herein.  
 
 Section 13. Indemnification.  Consultant expressly agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless Town or any of its officers or employees from any and all claims, damages, liability, or 
court awards including attorney’s fees that are or may be awarded as a result of any loss, injury or 
damage sustained or claimed to have been sustained by anyone, including, but not limited to, any 
person, firm, partnership, or corporation,  to the extent caused by the negligent acts, errors or 
omissions of Consultant or any of their employees or agents in performing work pursuant to this 

2016-07-21 Page 121 of 147



Agreement.  In the event that any such suit or action is brought against Town, Town will give 
notice within ten (10) days thereof to Consultant.  
 
 Section 14. Insurance.  Consultant shall at its own expense keep in full force and effect 
during the term of this Agreement insurance in the following minimum amounts: 
 
Consultant agrees to secure, at its own expense, a policy or policies of insurance sufficient to insure 
against the liability assumed by Consultant pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph.  
Consultant shall provide Town with a certification, by a properly qualified representative of the 
insurer, which any policy purchased pursuant to this Agreement complies with the conditions 
required by this Agreement.  
 
Consultant shall not be relieved of any liability assumed pursuant to the foregoing paragraph by 
reason of its failure to secure insurance as required by this Agreement or by reason of its failure to 
secure insurance in sufficient amounts of sufficient durations, or sufficient types to cover such 
liability.  The required policy shall meet the following conditions: 
 

a. The policy limits shall be as follows: 
 

1. The limit for an injury to one person in any single occurrence shall be not 
less than $150,000 and the limit for an injury to two or more persons in any 
single occurrence shall be not less than $600,000.  Costs of defense shall 
not be included within such limits.  However, if costs of defense are 
included, the minimum limits shall be $250,000 for injury to one person in 
any single occurrence and $800,000 for injuries to two or more persons in 
any single occurrence. 

 
2. Professional liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000. 

 
b. The policy shall include Town as an additional insured on Consultant’s general 

liability and automobile liability insurance policies.  The parties hereto understand 
and agree that Town is relying on and does not waive or intend to waive by this 
Agreement, any provision hereof, including the provisions of this paragraph, the 
monetary limitations or any other rights, immunities, and protections provided by 
the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. Section 24-10-101, et seq., as 
from time to time amended, or otherwise available to Town. 

 
c. The insurer shall give Town notification of any cancellation or termination by 

refusal to renew the policy or any change in coverage of the policy in the manner 
provided by law.  If no such notification is provided by law, the insurer shall give 
Town at least 30 days prior written notification of any cancellation or termination 
by refusal to renew the policy or of any material change by endorsement in 
coverage of the policy. 

 
d. Consultant shall be responsible for any deductible losses under the policy. 

 

2016-07-21 Page 122 of 147



e. If the policy is a claims made policy, the Consultant agrees to renew such policy 
for at least two years after the expiration of this Agreement.    

 
f. If the policy is a claims made policy, the retroactive date of any renewal of such 

policy shall be not later than the date this Agreement is signed by the parties hereto. 
 

g. If Consultant purchases a subsequent claims made policy in place of any prior 
policy, the retroactive date of such subsequent policy shall be no later than the date 
the Agreement is signed by the parties hereto. 

 
Triplicate copies of the policies or certificates of insurance acceptable to Town shall be filed with 
Town within seven (7) calendar days after the Agreement is signed by the parties hereto.  The 
policies or certificates shall be issued by Consultant and name as the insured Consultant and any 
of its designated employees or agents. 
 
 Section 15. Worker’s Compensation.  Consultant shall at its own expense keep in full 
force and effect during the term of this Agreement Statutory Worker’s Compensation Insurance. 
 
 Section 16. Subcontractors.  Consultant may utilize subcontractors identified in its 
Qualifications submittal to assist with non-specialized works as necessary to complete projects.  
Consultant will submit any proposed sub-contractor and the description of their services to the 
Town for approval.  The Town will not work directly with the subcontractors.   
 
 Section 17. Independent Contractor.  Consultant and Town hereby represent that 
Consultant is an independent contractor for all purposes hereunder.  As such, Consultant is not 
covered by any worker’s compensation insurance or any other insurance maintained by Town 
except as would apply to members of the general public. Consultant shall not create any 
indebtedness on behalf of the Town. 
 
 Section 18. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to Town and Consultant, and nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such 
Agreement.  It is the express intention of the parties that any person other than Town or Consultant 
receiving services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary 
only. 
 
 Section 19. Prohibition Against Hiring Illegal Aliens.  Consultant shall not 
knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this contract.  Consultant 
shall not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the Consultant that the 
subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under 
this contract. 
 
Consultant will participate in either the E-verify program or the Department program, as defined 
in C.R.S. § § 8-17.5-101(3.3) and 8-17.5-101(3.7), respectively, in order to confirm the 
employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work 
under the public contract for services.  Consultant is prohibited from using the E-verify program 

2016-07-21 Page 123 of 147



or the Department program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants 
while this contract is being performed. 
 
If Consultant obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this contract 
for services knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Consultant shall: 
 

a. Notify the subcontractor and the Town within three days that the Consultant has 
actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal 
alien; and 

 
b. Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three days of receiving 

the notice required pursuant to this paragraph the subcontractor does not stop 
employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that the Consultant shall not 
terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three days the 
subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not 
knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

 
Consultant shall comply with any reasonable request by the Department of Labor and Employment 
made in the course of an investigation that the Department is undertaking pursuant to the authority 
established in C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5). 
 
If Consultant violates a provision of this Contract required pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102, 
Town may terminate the contract for breach of contract.  If the contract is so terminated, the 
Consultant shall be liable for actual and consequential damages to the Town.  
 
TOWN OF PARACHUTE: 
 
 
________________________ 
Roy B. McClung, Mayor 
  
ATTEST:      
 
 
______________________________  
Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk     
 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 

 as ________________________________ 

 
STATE OF    ) 
     ) ss. 

2016-07-21 Page 124 of 147



COUNTY OF    ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of 
__________________, 20___ by ______________________ as ______________ for 
________________________. 
 
 Witness my official hand and seal. 
 
 My commission expires: _______. 
 
 ( S E A L )      ______________________________ 
       Notary Public  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2016-07-21 Page 125 of 147



Consultant’s Pre-Contract Certification 
Regarding Employing Illegal Aliens 

 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies as follows: 
 
That at the time of providing this certification, the undersigned does not knowingly employ or 
contract with an illegal alien; and that the undersigned will participate in the E-Verify program 
or the Department program, as defined in C.R.S. §§ 8-17.5-101(3.3) and 8-17.5-101(3.7), 
respectively, in order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly 
hired for employment to perform under the public contract for services.     
 
Consultant:  
 
By_____________________ as _____________________ of _____________________. 
 
 
 
__________________________    _______________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2016-07-21 Page 126 of 147



Exhibit “A” 
 

Scope of Work 
 
 

(Letter of Engagement Follows on the Next Page.) 
  

2016-07-21 Page 127 of 147



Mark Chain Consulting, LLC  

 
  
  
  
June 24, 2016  
  
  
Stuart McArthur, Town Manager         
Town of Parachute  
PO Box 100  
222 Grand Valley Way  
Parachute, CO  80635  
  
RE: Planning Consultant Services  
   
Dear Stuart:   
  
Thanks for our discussion earlier this week. I am submitting a Letter of Engagement 

for the purposes of providing general planning services for the Town of Parachute as 

well as my resume. I have kept the letter as short and simple as possible, laying out 

in bullet point fashion the general planning services I think you may need. There may 

be certain projects or issues that I am not aware of and we can add these as 

necessary. Proposed planning services are:  
    
• General planning services.  
• Review of any land use applications.  
• Provide comment/review of any Land Use Code Updates.  
• Review of proposed Planning Related Ordinances.  
• Enforcement of Town Ordinances (??- as requested or if needed).  
• Preparing initial draft of approval documents (in order to keep legal bills in line).  
• Grant writing, if requested.  
• Conducting Community Meetings on planning related projects/ issues.  
• Act as representative to other local governments or organizations (Community 

Liaison) if requested or as necessary.  
• Other planning services as requested.  
• Attend Planning Commission and Board Meetings as requested.  
  
I would propose to provide any of the above services or others at your direction at the 

rate of $60 per hour, my government/non-profit rate.  Travel time would be charged at 

one- half hourly rate. Invoices would be provided on a monthly basis.  Reimbursable 

expenses, such as copying would be charged back at cost.   
  
I would also consider receiving a monthly fee of an agreed upon amount for providing 
a certain number of hours a month – and the time spent could float over the year as 
long as a limit is not exceeded.    

2016-07-21 Page 128 of 147



Work would be performed under the guidance and supervision of the Town Manager.    
  
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to call me 309-3655 (cell) or my home 
office at 963-0385.   
  
Sincerely,  
  

  Mark Chain  
  
Mark Chain, Planner  
  
  

2016-07-21 Page 129 of 147



 
Mark A. Chain  

  
811 Garfield Avenue       Carbondale, CO  81623         970.963.0385 

mchain@sopris.net  
  
 

 
OBJECTIVE  
To provide planning and land use consulting services to small Towns in 
Colorado where I can utilize my extensive land use experience in helping the 
community solve land use, development related and quality of life issues.  
  
ABILITIES/SKILL SET/ACCOMPLISHMENTS  
• Well developed analytical and organizational skills.  
• Staff representative to many governmental and quasi-judicial boards such 

as Planning Commissions and City Councils.  
• Team Player.  
• Significant experience as coordinator for review teams for development 

related projects in Roaring Fork Valley as Planning Director.  
• Public Speaking and Presentation Skills.  
• New set of skills learned consistently as field of City Planning, technical 

support and mandates from higher levels of governments change over 
time.  

• Well developed analysis and report writing skills on complicated issues.  
• Negotiating Agreements as representative of public entity (municipal 

governments).  
• Experience advising Board on potential courses of action on full range of 

projects – from the sublime to the complex and controversial.  
• Review and analysis of complicated Community Issues.  
• Excellent experience communicating with individuals and members of 

groups as part of the planning process and running small town 
government,  oftentimes in private settings, sometimes in heated, public 
forums.  

• Owner and operator of small land use consulting firm in Roaring Fork 
Valley.   

• Administrator of departmental budgets while working for various 
governmental agencies.    

• Coordinator of all facets of land use entitlement projects for private 
developers.  

  
EMPLOYMENT HISTORY  
Mark Chain Consulting, LLC. Carbondale, CO.  January 2005 to Present 
Owner and operator of one man land use consulting firm in the Roaring Fork 
Valley.  
  

2016-07-21 Page 130 of 147



Town Of Carbondale, CO 1983 to January 2005  
Planning Director of Town.  Responsible for all Planning related activities, 
formulation of Community Plans and review of current planning projects. 
Acted as liaison with other communities as well as departments within the 
Town government.  
  
Town of Basalt, Co 1985-1989  
Town Planner.  Started and organized first full time Planning Department for 
the Town.  
  
Henderson, Young & Company, Boulder CO. 1981-1983  
Associate in budgeting and governmental consulting business  
  
Creative Land Use, Boulder CO.  1978-1981  
Associate in land use and community energy efficiency consulting business   
  
EDUCATION  

 B.A., Political Science    Univ. of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, PA.  
 Masters of Regional Planning  Cornell University, Ithaca, NY  

  
AFFILIATIONS/CERTIFICATIONS/COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION  
• American Institute of Certified Planners.  1988 through 2005.  
• Board of Directors, Carbondale & Rural Fire Protection District. 2006 to 

2014.  
• Board of Directors, Mount Sopris Nordic Council (cross-county ski area 7 

miles west of Carbondale). 2001-2012.  
• Ambulance Driver (and EMT) for Carbondale Fire Department every 

Sunday night (6 PM to 8 AM). 2011 – March 2013  
• Director of Annual Sports Sale for Nordic Council.  
• Projectionist at Crystal Theater, Carbondale, CO on Monday evenings.  
• National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians, Registry No. 

B2090248.  
• CPR certification, BLS for Health Care Professionals through 2-28-17.  
  
INTERESTS  
Running, road cycling, cross-country skiing, bridge, reading, gardening  
  
PERSONAL  
Married, one grandchild  
  
  
  
  

 

2016-07-21 Page 131 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 132 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 133 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 134 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 135 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 136 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 137 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 138 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 139 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 140 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 141 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 142 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 143 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 144 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 145 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 146 of 147



2016-07-21 Page 147 of 147


	2016-07-21 AGENDA SSMc REVISED
	(D)(1) Minutes from June 23, 2016
	(D)(2) Expenditures from 6-9-16 to 07-13-16
	(F)(2) Town Manager Monthly Report
	(F)(3) Comm Dev. Monthly Report
	(F)(4) Public Works Monthly Report
	(F)(5) Police Department Monthly Report
	(H) Balerio Special Use Review
	(Hh) Resolution 2016-16 Balerio DayCare
	(I) SCHEDULE OS USES APPLICATION (TITLE15)
	(Ii) Emergency Ordinance No 704-2016
	(J) Ordinance No 705-2016 Code Publishing
	(K) Ordinance No 699-2016 OHV's
	(L) Resolution No 2016-15 Setting Election Date
	(N) Mark Chain Agreement
	TOWN OF PARACHUTE:
	ATTEST:
	Lucy Cordova, Town Clerk

	Mark A. Chain
	OBJECTIVE
	ABILITIES/SKILL SET/ACCOMPLISHMENTS
	EMPLOYMENT HISTORY
	EDUCATION
	AFFILIATIONS/CERTIFICATIONS/COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION
	PERSONAL

	(O) GARCO IGA Mosquito Control
	(P) Historical Society Tnak you



